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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
TO THE 41ST GENERAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ASSEMBLY 

OF SHAREHOLDERS HELD ON ... 

Dear lnvestBank Shareholders 

On behalf of the board of directors, it is my pleasure to welcome you to this annual general meeting. And 
share with you the performance of your bank for the year 2016, the industry, regional and global 
economic and business outlook. 

Banks in the region have been operating in an environment of slow growth. According to the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates, growth in the UAE is likely to be down to 2.2 per cent in 2016 from 4 per 
cent last year, with the oil sector slated to grow at 1. 2 per cent and non-oil gross domestic product 
projected to do better by 2. 7 per cent year on year. 

In this scenario, the UAE banking system performed reasonably well. It was able to offset reduction in 
government deposits by consolidating the retail banking sector. Until the end of this year, domestic credit 
grew at 5.2 per cent year on year, mainly sustained by growth in private sector credit at 5.6 per cent and 
government assets at 3.5 per cent. 

UAE banks also boast an enviable capital adequacy ratio of 19 per cent by the end of the year, far above 
the required 12 per cent. 

Financial stability indicators also indicate stability; there was stronger growth in loans compared to 
deposits. The loan-to-deposit ratio was 100.7 at the end of 2016, against 100.9 at the end of Dec 2015, 
while the lending to stable resources ratio hit 86.6per cent by end of 2016 compared to 87.1% as of Dec 
2015, suggesting that banks have sufficient stable resources. 

Overall UAE banking system remained remarkably res!lient in the face of multiple challenges throughout 
2016 - be it low crude prices, contraction of government investment or unpredictable global political 
events. UAE banks continue to be well-capitalized and profitable, backed by high asset quality. The New 
Year, therefore, is unlikely to spring any unpleasant surprises as far as the banking sector goes. 

Rating agency S&P has noted that the UAE economy remains strong and diverse. The overall regulatory 
framework has improved over the past few years, but high credit risk continues to be an area of concern. 
The economic outlook, however, has been affected by volatility and weakness in the domestic equity and 
real estate markets, which could have a negative impact on the banks' ratings 

The Eurozone remains shaky, with nations struggling with trade disruption, refugee influx and the banking 
system weighed down by beleaguered Italian and Portuguese institutions. A negative interest rate policy 
will continue to dominate advanced economies, a decision that hurts them in the long run. 

In comparison, GCC countries and the UAE have fared better and are more focused in their subsidy 
targets. UAE government is following a policy of fiscal consolidation and if this continues, it will shore up 
momentum and GDP growth may hit 2.4 per cent in 2017. Furthermore, the two new laws introduced 
lately will have a positive impact on banks and on the overall economy in the coming years. 

The New UAE Commercial Companies Law, introduced in July 2015, will gradually become more 
functional. This law is aimed at enhancing corporate governance, protection of shareholder rights and 
promoting social responsibility within companies. 

Additionally, the new bankruptcy law, decreed in 2016, will also have wide ramifications for companies 
and banks. It wil! provide a comprehensive legal framework to prevent distressed companies from 
collapsing. Insolvent companies will be able to avoid liquidation through financial re-organization, pre­

settlement or financial restructuring. This will come as a big support for the SME sector. 
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Thus, a combination of proactive regulations and state interventions will once again maintain stability 
within the UAE banking system and in the wider economy, enabling the country to maintain growth in a 
diversified manner. 

According to other rating agency Moody's, UAE's sound policy framework and the strong growth in the 
non-oil hydrocarbon sector continues to drive economic diversification that supports the operating 
environment, particularly in the current low oil price environment. 

In Moody's view while the continued oil price declines is subduing economic confidence and moderating 
the country's growth prospects in UAE, the resilience of Dubai's diversified non-oil private sector and 
public spending plans, particularly in Abu Dhabi, continue to drive both public and private-sector 
economic growth and partially cushion the impact of low oil prices. 

"The substantive sovereign wealth fund buffers and relatively low debt levels allow for the continuation of 
spending over the outlook horizon, although the prolonged fall in oil prices has already resulted in prudent 
budget rationalization, such as the recent withdrawal of fuel subsidies, discussions on regional VAT and 
corporate tax policies and likely deferral of non-core projects. The country remains moderately 
susceptible to event risk, owing primarily to geopolitical tensions in the region". 

On the other hand, the impact of global events such as Brexit, hiking of benchmark interest rates by the 
US Federal Reserve, change of presidential guard in the US and regional conflict in the Middle East may 
throw its shadow well into 2017. 

Invest Bank's Performance during the year 2016 

During 2016, your bank continued to deliver strong results and sustained growth across all areas. 

• Loans and Advances increased by 10% reaching AED 11. 9 billion at the end of 2016. Almost 
double the 5.8% banking industry average. 

• Customer Deposits increased by 7% reaching AED 12.2 billion at year end. 
• Total Assets increased by 8% to reach AED 16.1billion. 
• Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 17.8% against 12% required under Basel II and local 

regulations. 
• Liquid Assets Ratio was 15% against 10% as per local regulations. 
• Lending to Stable Deposit ratio was 95% against 100% regulatory requirement. 

As a result of above, net profit for the year increased by 8% to reach AED 272 Million, mainly driven by 
the 4% growth in operating income which reached AED 741 Million. The growth in operating income 
came on the back of increase in net interest income and net fees and commissions. 

Net interest income increased by 2% to reach AED 511 Million, whereas net fees and commission income 
increased by 9% to reach AED 199 Million. 

Current market conditions command cautious approach. Therefore, our strategy is to aim for modest and 
measured growth particularly in view of the inordinate costs relating to the implementation of various best 
practices, regulatory standards, namely Information Security, IFRS-9, Basel-Ill and continued investment 
in Human Resources. 
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Despite these challenges and rapid changing economic, business and regulatory conditions, we remain 
committed to stable growth, capital preservation and strategic positioning. Last but not least, our 
commitment to human resource development, especially UAE nationals, remains undeterred. 

Before concluding, personally and on behalf of the entire board of directors, I want to express our sincere 
gratitude and appreciation to His Highness Sheikh Dr. Sultan bin Mohammed Al-Qasimi, member of the 
Supreme Council and Ruler of Sharjah for his guidance and support. 

On your behalf, I would also like to thank the bank's management and staff members for their dedication 
and commitment to service quality. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 
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KPMG Lower Gulf Limited 
Level 13, Boulevard Plaza Tower One 
Mohammed Bin Rashid Boulevard, Downtown Dubai, UAE 
Tel. +971 (4) 403 0300, Fax +971 (4) 330 1515 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Shareholders of Invest Bank P.S.C. 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Invest Bank P.S.C. and its 
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statements of profit or loss, profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 
2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 



Invest Bank P. S. C 
Independent Auditors' reporl on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31December2016 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

Key Audit Matters Our response 

Credit risk and impairment Our audit procedures included the assessment of 
of loans and advances to controls over the approval, recording and monitoring 
customers of loans and advances, and evaluating the 

methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by the 
Refer to note 8 and 27(b) of Group in calculating collectively assessed 
the consolidated financial impairments, and assessing the adequacy of 
statements impairment allowances for individually assessed 

loans. 
The carrying value net of 
impairment allowance, of For corporates, our procedures included: 
loans and advances held at 
amortised cost represents • Testing the key controls over the internal credit 
74% of total assets of the grading and monitoring process, to assess if the 
Group. Impairment risk grades allocated to counterparties were 
allowance is a subjective appropriately identified, on a timely basis; 
area due to the level of 
professional judgement • Substantive testing of a selection of credit 
applied by the management grades to test the appropriateness of the credit 
in determining such grades given at a point in time; and 
allowance. 

• Performing credit assessments for selected 
Given the significance of loans. We assessed the reasonableness of the 
loans and advances and the forecast of recoverable cash flows, realisation 
related estimation of collateral and other possible sources of 
uncertainty with respect to repayment. We compared key assumptions to 
impairment, this is progress against business plans and our own 
considered a key audit understanding of the relevant industries and 
matter. business environment. We also compared 

them, where possible, to externally derived 
Professional judgement is evidence such as audited accounts of the 
applied to determine borrowers and real estate valuations for 
appropriate parameters and assessing the appropriateness of the collaterals 
assumptions used to 
calculate both specific and 

held by the Group. 

collective impairment For collective provision, our procedures included: 
allowance. For example, 
certain key assumptions • Testing the key management controls over the 
used to determine impact of underlying data into the models; 
impairment include 
customers that will default, • Evaluating the methodology and the key 
valuation of collateral for assumptions and assessing the appropriateness 
secured lending and the of the emergence period used in determining 
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Invest Bank P.S.C 
Independent Auditors' reporl on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31 December 2016 

Key Audit Matters Our response 
future cash flows of the estimate and where possible, we compare 
corporate loan customers. the key assumptions used to externally 

available industry, financial and economic data. 

Assessing whether the consolidated financial 
statement disclosures appropriately reflect the 
Group's exposure to credit risk. 

Valuation of investment Our audit procedures include: 
property 

• We assessed the competence, independence 
Refer to note 10 and 3(1) of and integrity of the external valuers and read 
the consolidated financial the terms of engagement with the Group to 
statements determine whether there were any matters that 

might have affected their objectivity or any 
The valuation of investment scope limitations imposed on them. 
properties acquired in 
settlement of debt is • We obtained the external valuation reports for 
determined through the all properties and confirmed that the valuation 
application of valuation approach is in accordance with RICS' standards 
techniques which often and is suitable for use in determining the fair 
involve the exercise of value in the consolidated statement of financial 
professional judgement and position. 
the use of assumptions and 
estimates. • We carried out procedures to test whether 

property specific data supplied to the external 
Due to the significance of valuers by management is appropriate. 
investment properties and 
the related estimation • We assessed the reasonableness of any 
uncertainty, this is adjustments/ assumptions used by the valuers 
considered a key audit and the reasonableness of the discount rates/ 
matter. capitalization rates applied on income streams 

Investment properties are 
generated by the properties; 

held at fair value through • For fair valued properties with ongoing projects, 
profit or loss in the Group's we analysed costs to complete for existing 
statement of financial projects and compared to actual and budgeted 
position and qualify under expenses. 
Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy as at 31 December • Based on the outcome of our evaluation we 
2016. determined the adequacy of the disclosure in 

the consolidated financial statements. 

Valuation of financial Our audit procedures included: 
instruments measured at 
fair value • The assessment of controls over the 

identification, measurement and management 
Refer to note 7 and 3(s) of of valuation risk, evaluating the methodologies, 
the consolidated financial reasonableness of inputs and assumptions 
statements used by the Group in determining fair values; 
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Invest Bank P.S.C 
Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31December2016 

Key Audit Matters Our response 
The valuation of unquoted • Assessing, for a selection of investments, key 
financial instruments is inputs, assumptions, considering alternate 
determined through the valuation methods used by management and 
application of valuation supporting to key factors; and 
techniques which often 
involve the exercise of • Assessing whether the consolidated financial 
professional judgement and statements disclosures of fair value risks and 
the use of assumptions and sensitivities appropriately reflect the Group's 
estimates. exposure to valuation risk. 

Due to the uncertainty in 
estimating fair values of 
unquoted instruments, this is 
considered as a key audit 
matter. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of 
the Board of Directors report as set out on pages 1-3 of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and their preparation in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial 
reporting process. 
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Invest Bank P.S.C 
Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31December2016 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal 
control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion. 
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Invest Bank P.S.C 
Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31 December 2016 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(continued) 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary 
for the purposes of our audit; 

ii) the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all 
material respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) 
of 2015; 

iii) the Group has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Board of Directors' report, in so far as it 
relates to these consolidated financial statements, is consistent with the books 
of account of the Group; 

v) notes 7 to the consolidated financial statements disclose the shares purchased 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016; 

vi) note 22 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party 
transactions and the terms under which they were conducted; 

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come 
to our attention which causes us to believe that the Group has contravened 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 any of the applicable 
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or in respect of the Group, its 
Articles of Associations, which would materially affect its activities or its 
consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2016; and 
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Invest Bank P.S.C 
Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31December2016 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

viii) note 28 to the consolidated financial statements discloses the social 
contributions made during the year. 

Further, as required by the UAE Union Law No. (10) of 1980, as amended, we report 
that we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary 
for the purposes of our audit. 

On behalf of KPMG Lower Gulf Limited 

Fawzi AbuRass 
Registration No.: 968 
Dubal, ~n~t~l:L(\~~Rr:~mirates 
Date:! l i' '~ D £JH I 
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Invest bank P.S.C. 
Consolidated statement of financial position 
as at 31December2016 

Note 2016 
AED '000 

Assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 5 1,863,727 

Due from banks 6 562,197 

Investment securities 7 705,651 

Loans and advances to customers 8 ll,953,525 

Property and equipment 9 111,440 

Other assets 10 928,767 

-------
Total assets 16,125,307 

--

Liabilities 
Due to banks 11 329,002 

Deposits from customers 12 12,176,685 

Other liabilities 13 658,105 

---------
Total liabilities 13,163,792 

-----------
Equity 
Share capital 14 1,588,125 

Legal reserve 14 450,688 

Special reserve 14 450,688 

Fair value reserve (84,470) 

Retained earnings 556,484 

-----------
Total equity 2,961,515 

---------
Total liabilities and equity 16,125,307 

======== 

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Thesef c~:JO;!!eit~fittancial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 
_________ and signed on its behalf by: 

Director 

The independent auditors' report is set out on page 4 to 10. 

II 

2015 
AED '000 

1,786,104 

382,616 

802,708 

10,901,149 

118,641 

916,193 

-------
14,907,411 

======= 

11,647 

11,331,286 

740,389 

---------
12,083,322 

..... -----------

1,588,125 

423,517 

423,517 

(70,344) 

459,274 

-----------
2,824,089 

----------
14,907,411 
======= 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Consolidated statement of profit or loss 
for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Note 2016 2015 
AED '000 AED '000 

Operating income 

Interest income 15 769,583 726,494 

[nterest expense 15 (258,484) (226,353) 

------------- -------------
:Net interest income 511,099 500,141 

Net fees and commission income 16 199,407 182,707 

Net income from foreign currencies 19,944 20,039 

Other income 17 10,600 8,839 
----------- -----------

Total operating income 741,050 711,726 
----------- ----------

Operating expenses 

General and administrative expenses 18 (177,341) (173,266) 

Depreciation and amortisation (11,564) (11,676) 
----------

Total operating expenses (188,905) (184,942) 
----------

Profit before impairment loss 552,145 526,784 

Net impairment loss 19 (280,434) (274,585) 

----------
Profit for the year 271,711 252,199 

====== 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (UAE Dirhams) 20 0.171 0.159 

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report is set out on page 4 and l 0. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

The notes on pages 1 6 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report is set out on page 4 and l 0. 

2016 2015 
AED '000 AED '000 

271,711 252,199 

(14,126) (67,208) 

----------
(14,126) (67,208) 

----------

(14,126) (67,208) 

=--=== ====== 
257,585 184,991 

---- ======= 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for tlze year ended 31 December 2016 

Share Legal Special Fair value Retained 

capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total 

AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 

Balance at 1 January 2016 1,588,125 423,517 423,517 (70,344) 459,274 2,824,089 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
Total comprehensive income 
Profit for the year 271,711 271,711 

Other comprehensive income 

Changes in fair value of financial assets measured 

at fair value through other comprehensive income (14,126) (14,126) 

Loss on sale of financial assets measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive income 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
Total other comprehensive income (14,126) (14,126) 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
Total comprehensive income for the year (14, 126) 271,711 257,585 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ -----------
Transfers to reserves 27,171 27,171 (54,342) 

Directors remuneration (1,050) (1,050) 

Tra11sactio11 with owners of tile Bank 

Issue of bonus shares 

Cash dividend paid (119,109) (119, 109) 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
Balance at 31December2016 1,588,125 450,688 450,688 (84,470) 556,484 2,961,515 

---- = --- = ----

Balance at l January 2015 l,443,750 398,297 398,297 (28,342) 572,521 2,784,523 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
Total comprehensive income 
Profit for the year 252,199 252,199 

Other comprehensive income 

Changes in fair value of financial assets measured 

at fair value through other comprehensive income (67,208) (67,208) 

Loss on sale of financial assets measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive income 25,206 (25,206) 

----------- ------------ ----------- ------------ ------------
Total other comprehensive income (42,002) (25,206) (67,208) 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ -----------
Total comprehensive income for the year (42,002) 226,993 184,991 

------------ ----------- ------------ ------------ -----------
Transfers to reserves 25,220 25,220 (50,440) 

Directors remuneration (1,050) (1,050) 

Transaction witlt owners of tile Ba11k 

Issue of bonus shares 144,375 (144,375) 

Cash dividend paid (144,375) (144,375) 

------------ ------------ ----------- ------------ ----------
Balance at 31December2015 1,588,125 423,517 423,517 (70,344) 459,274 2,824,089 

--- = 

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral pmt of these consolidated financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report is set out on page 4 and 10. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2016 

Note 2016 2015 
AED '000 AED '000 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit for the year 271,711 252,199 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 11,564 11,676 

Amortisation of premium on bonds 2,998 6,151 

Net gain on investment securities (20,901) (6,409) 
Fair value loss on investment property 24,000 4,000 

Net impairment loss 280,434 274,585 

------------- -------------
569,806 542,202 

Changes in time deposits with Central bank maturing after three months (180,000) (225,000) 

Changes in time deposits with banks maturing after three months 1,998 (101,998) 

Change in loans and advances to customers (l,332,810) (1,320,026) 

Change in other assets (36,574) (29,753) 

Change in time deposits with banks maturing after three months (7,346) (200,000) 

Change in deposits from customers 845,399 1,137,095 

Change in other liabilities (82,284) 24,186 

Directors' remuneration paid (1,050) (1,050) 

-------------- --------------
Net cash used in operating activities (222,861) (174,344) 

-------------- --------------
Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property and equipment (4,363) (5,078) 

Purchase of investment securities (295,641) 

Proceeds from sale/redemption of investment securities 100,834 396,270 
-----------

Net cash generated from investing activities 96,471 95,551 
-----------

Cash flows from financing activity 

Cash dividend paid (119,109) (144,375) 

------------ ------------
Net cash used in financing activity (119,109) (144,375) 

------------ ------------

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (245,499) (223,168) 

Cash and cash equivalents at l January 1,828,239 2,051,407 

------------- -------------
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 21 1,582,740 1,828,239 

===--=== ======== 

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report is set out on page 4 and 10. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

1 Legal status and activities 

Invest bank P.S.C. ("Invest bank" or "the Bank") is a public shareholding company with limited liability which was 
incorporated in 1975 by an Emiri Decree issued by His Highness Dr. Sheikh Sultan Bin Mohammed Al Qassimi, 
Ruler of Shaijah. The registered address of the Bank is at Al Zahra Street, P.O. Box 1885, Sharjah, United Arab 
Emirates ("UAE"). 

Invest Bank is licensed by the Central Bank of the UAE (the "CB UAE") to carry out banking activities and is 
principally engaged in the business of corporate and retail banking through its network of branches located in the 
Emirate of Shaijah, Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Ras Al Khaimah and Fujairah. Invest Bank is also licensed by Banque Du 
Liban (the "CB Lebanon") and carries out banking activities through it's branch in Beirut, Lebanon. The Bank's 
shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange ("ADX"). 

The Bank has a fully owned subsidiary, ALF A Financial Services FZE with limited liability status in the Shatjah 
Airpo1t International Free Zone to provide support services to the Bank. 

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Bank and its 
subsidiary (together referred to as "the Group"). 

2 Basis of preparation 

a) Statement of compliance 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and applicable laws of UAE. On I April 2015, a new UAE Federal Law No 2 for Commercial 
Companies ("UAE Companies Law of 2015") was issued with effective date I July 2015. As per the transitional 
provisions of the new law, companies are to ensure compliance by 30 June 2017. The Bank is in the process of 
adopting the new federal law and will be fully compliant before the transitional provisions deadline. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following which 
are stated at fair value: 
- Investment properties; 
- Derivative financial instruments; 
- Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss; and 
- Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements have been presented using UAE Dirham ("AED"), which is the Bank's 
functional and presentation currency. Except as otherwise indicated, financial information presented in AED has 
been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

d) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected. 
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Notes 

2 Basis of preparation (continued) 

d) Use of estimates mul judgments (continued) 

In particular, information about significant areas or estimation uncerlainty and critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial 
statements are described in note 26. 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements. 

a) Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiary 

A subsidiary is an investee controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee if it is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the investee. The financial statements of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date on which control commences until the date when control ceases. 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency 
transaction gains or losses) arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but to the extent that there 
is no evidence of impairment. 

b) Interest income and expense 

Interest income and interest expense are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective 
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the 
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the 
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs, fees and points paid or received that are an 
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability. 

Interest income and expense presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss include: 

- interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective interest 
basis; 
- the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in cash flow hedges of 
variability in interest cash flows, in the same period that the hedged cash flows affect interest income/expenses; and 
- the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in fair value hedges of 
interest rate risk. 

Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Group's trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net 
income from investments. 

Fair value changes on the other derivatives held for risk management purposes, and other financial assets and 
financial liabilities carried at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are presented in net income from foreign 
currencies and other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

c) Fees and commission income and expense 

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability 
are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. 

Other fees and commission income are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the related services are 
performed by the Group. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, commitment 
fees are recognised on a straight line basis over the commitment period. Other fees and commission expenses are 
expensed as the related services are received. 

d) Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the Group's right to receive such 
income is established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. 

e) Financial assets 

Recognition 

The Group initially recognises financial assets such as loans and advances and debt securities on the date at which 
they are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are 
initially recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. 

Classification 

At inception a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value. 

A financial asset qualifies for amortised cost measurement only if it meets both of the following two conditions: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows; and 

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

If a financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, then it is measured at fair value. 

The Group makes an assessment of a business model at portfolio level as this reflect the best way the business is 
managed and information is provided to the management. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Financial assets (continued) 

In making an assessment of whether an asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows, the Group considers: 

- management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice; 
- how management evaluates the performance of the portfolio; 
- whether management's strategy focus on earning contractual interest income; 
- the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales; 
- the reason of any asset sales; and 
- whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period of time relative to their contractual maturity or are sold 
shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity. 

Financial assets held for trading are not held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows. 

The Group has designated certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss because designation eliminates 
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, which would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTOCJ 

At initial recognition the Group makes an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate 
investments in ce11ain equity instruments at FVTOCI (fair value through other comprehensive income). Designation 
to FVTOCI is not permitted ifthe equity instrument is held for trading. 

Dividend from such equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the 
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the 
cost of the investment. 

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss and no 
impairment is recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except when the Group changes its 
business model for managing financial assets. 

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired 
when objective evidence demonstrates that a Joss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that 
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows relating to the asset that can be estimated reliably. The Group 
considers evidence of impairment at both a specific and collective level. 

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group 
would not otherwise consider, indication that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an 
active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse change in the 
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Financial assets (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued) 

Specific impairment 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a case-by-case basis whether there is any objective evidence that an 
asset is impaired. Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. 

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one 
due to financial difficulties of the borrower then an assessment is made whether the financial asset should be 
derecognised. If the cash flows of the renegotiated asset are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash 
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case the original financial asset is 
derecognised and the new financial asset is recognised at fair value. The impairment loss is measured as follows: 

a) If the expected restructuring does not result in derecognition of the existing asset, the estimated cash flows arising 
from the modified financial asset are included in the measurement of the existing asset based on their expected 
timing and amounts discounted at the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset. 

b) If the expected restructuring results in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new 
asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is 
discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of 
the existing financial asset. 

Collective impairment 
Impairment is determined on a collective basis for two different scenarios: 
- for loans subject to individual assessment to cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been 
identified; and 
- for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant. 

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modeling of historical trends of the probability of 
default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether 
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by 
historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked 
against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate. 

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are 
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off and/or any event resulting in a reduction in impairment loss, 
decreases the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account 
against loans and advances. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the 
discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment 
loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Financial assets (continued) 

De-recognition of financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, 
or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of the ownership 
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control on the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that quality for 
derecognition that is carried or retained by the Group is recognised as separate asset or liability in the consolidated 
statement of financial position. On derecognition of financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the 
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and consideration received (including 
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement of financial 
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assets or a portion of them. 
If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfer of 
assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include securities lending and repurchase 
transactions. 

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its 
continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred 
asset. 

In certain transactions the Group retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The 
transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the 
servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than adequate 
(liability) for performing the services. 

j) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group 

Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement. 

Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'. The Group 
initially recognises financial liabilities such as deposits and debt securities issued on the date at which they are 
originated. All other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are 
initially recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument. 
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f) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group (continued) 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated at 
FVTPL and measured at fair value. 

Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities including Group borrowings and customers' deposits are initially measured at fair value, 
net of transaction costs. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at am01iised cost using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognised on an effective interest basis. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire. 

Amortised cost 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at 
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 
method of any difforence between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus, in case of financial 
assets, any reduction for impairment. 

Trading assets and liabilities 

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Group acquires or incurs principally for the 
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as pati of a portfolio that is managed together for short­
term profit. 

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value in the consolidated 
statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. All 
changes in fair value are recognised as part of other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

Designation at fair value through profit or loss 

The Group designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in either of the following 
circumstances: 
- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; 
- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise; and 
- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would 

otherwise be required under the contract. 
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3 Sununary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

g) Offsetting 

Financial assets and liabilities are offSet and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and it 
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or for gains and losses arising 
from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading activity. 

It) Fair value measurement principles 

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for 
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient 
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique 
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price -
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value at initial 
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable 
markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the 
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when 
the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets and 
long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are managed 
by the Group on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the basis of a price that 
would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. 
Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk 
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio. 

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on 
which the amount could be required to be paid. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occurred. 
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i) Derivative financial instruments - Other non trading derivatives 

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments primarily to meet its customer requirements. Derivatives held 
for internal risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as trading 
assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes are measured at fair value in the consolidated 
statement of financial position. 

j) Foreign currency 

(i) Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to UAE Dirhams at the foreign exchange rates at the elate of the 
transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to UAE Dirhams 
at the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 
difference between the amortised cost in UAE Dirhams at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest 
and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot exchange rate at 
the end of the year. 

Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated to UAE 
Dirhams at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non monetary items that are 
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. 

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. 

(ii) Foreign operations 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into UAE Dirhams at spot exchange rate at the reporting 
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to UAE Dirhams at spot exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions. 

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI, and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve 
(translation reserve), except to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interest 
("NCI"). 

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve 
related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group 
disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, then the 
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI. 

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in 
the foreseeable future, then foreign currency differences arising on the item form part of the net investment in the 
foreign operation and are recognised in OCI, and accumulated in the translation reserve within equity. 
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k) Property and equipment 

(i) Recognition mu/ measurement 

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 

(ii) Subsequent cost 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of the expenditure 
will flow to the Group. On going repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated residual values 
using the straight line method over their useful lives, and is generally recognised in consolidated statement of profit 
or loss. Land is not depreciated. 

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment are as follows: 

Buildings 
Office installations and improvements 
Office furniture and equipment 
Motor vehicles 
IT equipment (including software) 

Years 
20 to 30 

10 
2 to 5 

3 
4 to 5 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date and adjusted if 
appropriate. No depreciation is charged on freehold land and capital-work-in-progress. Gains and losses on disposals 
are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss. 

I) Investment property 

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for 
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes. The Group holds some investment property acquired through the enforcement of security over loans and 
advances. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any 
change therein recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group determines fair value on the 
basis of valuation provided by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification 
and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. 
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111) Staff terminal benefits 

The Group provides for staff terminal benefits based on an estimation of the amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned in return for their service until their retirement. This calculation is performed based on a projected unit 
credit method. 

The Group contributes to the pension scheme for UAE nationals under the UAE pension and social security law. 
This is a defined contribution pension plan and the Group's contributions are charged to the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss in the period to which they relate. In respect of this scheme, the Group has a legal and constructive 
obligation to pay the fixed contributions as they fall due and no obligations exist to pay the future benefits. 

n) Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to reflect current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

o) Financial guarantees and loan commitments 

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 
loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees or commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are 
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the commitment. 
The liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected 
payment to settle the liability when a payment under the contract has become probable. Financial guarantees and 
commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are included within other liabilities. 

p) Earnings per share 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (''EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, 
balances with central banks, amounts due from other banks and deposits from other banks that are held for the 
purpose of meeting short tetm cash commitments. 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. 
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1~ Loans and advances to customers 

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, that are not quoted in an 
active market and the Group docs not intend to sell immediately in the near future. 

Loans and advances arc initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs. Subsequent to the 
initial recognition loans and advances are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except 
when the Group recognises the loans and advances at fair value through profit or loss. 

When the Group is a lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to 
the ownership of the asset to the lessee, the arrangement is classified as finance lease and a receivable equal to the net 
investment in lease is recognised and presented within loans and advances. 

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a 
substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement is 
accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the Group's financial statements. 

s) Investment securities 

Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus in case of investment securities not at fair value through 
profit or loss, incremental direct transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition investment securities are 
accounted for depending upon their classification as either amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss or fair 
value through other comprehensive income. 

Investment securities are measured at amot1ised cost using the effective interest method, if: 

- they are held within a business model with an objective to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flow and 
the contractual terms of financial assets give rise, on specific dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest; and 

- they have not been designated previously as measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Group elects to present changes in fair value of certain investments in equity instruments held for strategic 
purpose in other comprehensive income. The election is irrevocable and is made on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis at initial recognition. 

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss and no 
impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

t) Dividend on ordinary shares 

Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved by the 
Bank's shareholders. 

u) Share capital 

Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and 
share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 
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v) Operating leases 

Leases of assets under which the lessor effectively retains all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

w) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than investment property are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of its value in 
use and its fair value less cost to sell. The reduction in value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or am01iization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

x) Segment reporting 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Executive Committee of the 
Group to make decisions about resources allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete 
financial information is available. 

y) New Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning 
after 1 January 2016 and earlier application is permitted; however the Group has not adopted the following new or 
amended standards and have not been applied these in preparing consolidated financial statements. 

IFRS 15 

IFRS 9 

IFRS 16 

Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. 
Financial instruments (2015). 

Leases 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

(effective 1 January 2018) 

(effective I January 2018) 

(effective 1 January 2019) 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction 
Contracts, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, 
IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services. 

'The Group is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of this standard on it's consolidated financial statement 
resulting from application of this IFRS 15. 

IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

y) New Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted (continued) 

IFRS 9 J?inaucial Instruments 

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 (2009) which sets out guidelines for the classification and measurement of financial 
assets. 

IFRS 9, published in July 2015, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, 
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge 
accounting requirements. Jt also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial 
instruments from IAS 39. 

The Group is in the process of analysing the impact of this standard. 

lFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after l January 2018, with early adoption permitted. 

IFRS 9 (Phase rr and Phase Ill) includes new guidance on expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on 
financial assets and a new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition 
and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Group has performed a preliminary assessment of the 
impact of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' as per the instructions of the Central Bank of UAE. The Bank's focus 
continues to be on developing the impairment models and processes which are needed for the parallel run during 
2017 in order to be fully compliant with IFRS 9. The Group believes that once the impairment model and processes 
are finalised, it will be in a better position to assess the potential impact of IFRS 9 on the consolidated financial 
statements and any consequential effects on regulatory capital requirements. 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use 
asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease 
payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting 
remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. 

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases- Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for 
entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of 
lFRS 16. 

The following new or amended standards are not expected to significantly affect the Group's consolidated financial 
statements. 

Amendments to IAS l 

Amendments to IAS 12 

Amendments to IFRS 2 

Disclosure Initiative 

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 
for Unrealised Losses 

Classification and Measurement of 
Share Based Payments Transactions 

(effective 1 January 2017) 

(effective l January 2017) 

(effective l January 2017) 
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4 Segmental analysis 

The Group operates in the United Arab Emirates and Lebanon, and its results arise largely from commercial banking, 
treasury and investment activities. Information with respect to business segments is as follows: 

Year ended 2016 

Net interest and other income 

Net impairment (loss) /reversal 

Profit for the year 

Segment capital expenditure 

Segment depreciation 

At 31 December 
Segment total assets 

Segment total liabilities 

5 Cash and deposits with central banks 

Cash in hand 

Commercial 
banking 

AED'OOO 

690,257 

------------
(285,032) 

------------
219,817 

====--= 
4,363 

===--== 

11,564 
=== 

13,331,218 

---------------
12,460,993 
====== 

Deposits with central banks ( refer note 5.1 ) 
Reserve requirements with the CB UAE 
Reserve requirements with the CB Lebanon 

Treasury 
and 

Investments 
AED'OOO 

50,793 

------------
4,598 

------------
51,894 

======= 

==== 

====== 

2,794,089 

------------
702,799 

====== 

Total 
AED'OOO 

741,050 

------------
(280,434) 

------------
271,711 

===== 

4,363 

==== 
11,564 

===== 

16,125,307 

---------------
13,163,792 
===--= 

Year ended 2015 

Commercial Treasury and 
banking Investments Total 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

644,313 67,413 711,726 

------------ ------------ ------------
(274,799) 214 (274,585) 

------------ ------------ ------------
187,910 64,289 252,199 

======= =::;:;:=:::.:::=== ======= 
5,078 5,078 

==== ====== ==--=== 

11,676 11,676 
==== = === 

12,176,217 2,731,194 14,907,411 

------------- ------------ ------------
11,687,950 395,372 12,083,322 
======== ======= ======= 

2016 2015 
AED'OOO AED'OOO 

82,509 80,725 

1,351,610 1,255,057 

388,222 422,624 

41,386 27,698 

------------- ------------
1,863,727 1,786,104 

======== ======== 

Statutory reserve deposits are required to be maintained as per regulations of the CB UAE and the CB Lebanon. 

5.1 Includes AED 9.182 million (2015: AED 9.182 million) cash reserve amounting to 25% of the capital of the 
Lebanon Branch with CB Lebanon. This reserve is not available for the day to day activities of the Lebanon branch. 
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6 Due from banks 
2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Money market placements 419,866 127,587 
Balances with other banks 142,331 255,029 

------------- -------------
562,197 382,616 

======= ==== 

The geographical concentration is as follows: 
- Within the U.A.E 378,831 152,200 
- Outside the U .A. E 183,366 230,416 

------------ -------------
562,197 382,616 

==--= ======== 
7 Investment securities 

OtherGCC 
The details of investments are as follows: Domestic Countries Others Total 

AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 

At 31December2016 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL): 

Investments in quoted equity securities 2,656 1,954 4,610 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Investments in quoted equity securities 142,108 899 143,007 

Investments in un-quoted equity securities 111,482 111,482 

Financial assets at amortised cost: 

Investments in debt securities 446,552 446,552 

---------- ---------- ----------- -----------
702,798 899 1,954 705,651 
== === 

At 31 December 2015 
Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (FVTPL): 

Investments in quoted equity securities 2,485 1,894 4,379 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Investments in quoted equity securities 127,099 1,033 128,132 

Investments in un-quoted equity securities 121,482 121,482 

Financial assets at amortised cost: 
Investments in debt securities 548,715 548,715 

----------- ----------- ------------ -----------
799,781 l,033 1,894 802,708 

======= ======= ======= ======= 
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8 Loans and advances to customers 

Overdrafts 

Bills discounted 
Trust receipts 
Term loans 

Allowances for impairment (refer note 8.1 and 8.2) 

Net loans and advances to customers 

8.1 The movement during the year in the impairement provision is as follows: 

At 1 January 

Charge for the year (refer note 19) 

Recoveries during the year 

Interest not recognised in the consolidated profit or loss statement (net) 

Amounts written off during the year 

8.2 The composition of allowances of impairmement is as follows: 

Specific allowance for impairment 
Collective allowance for impairment 

2016 

AED'OOO 

4,801,582 

597,997 

599,081 

7,016,484 

------------
13,015,144 

(1,061,619) 
-------------
11,953,525 

2016 

AED'OOO 

961,580 

422,637 

(80,090) 

31,856 

(274,364) 
------------
1,061,619 
===== 

2016 
AED'OOO 

837,120 

224,499 
-----------
1,061,619 
== 

2015 

AED'OOO 

4,682,050 

546,846 

671,334 

5,962,500 

------------
11,862,730 

(961,581) 
-------------
10,901,149 
======== 

2015 

AED'OOO 

915,100 

310,207 

(11,329) 

51,343 

(303, 740) 

961,581 
====== 

2015 
AED'OOO 

751,327 

210,254 

961,581 
------
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9 Property and equipment 

Office Office 
installation furniture 

Land and and impr- and Motor 
building -movements equipment vehicles Total 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Cost 
At l January 2016 103,974 45,131 66,139 460 215,704 
Additions 330 4,033 4,363 
Disposals/ transfer 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
At 31December2016 103,974 45,461 70,172 460 220,067 

------------ ------------ ----------- ------------ ------------
Accumulated depreciation 
At l January 2016 24,997 22,138 49,711 217 97,063 
Disposals/ transfer 
Charge for the year 1,863 3,653 5,895 153 11,564 

--------- ----------- ----------- ---------- -----------
At 31 December 2016 26,860 25,791 55,606 370 108,627 

---------- ----------- ----------- ---------- -----------
Net book value at 31 December 2016 77,114 19,670 14,566 90 111,440 

===== ===== ==== ===== ===== 

Cost 
At 1January2015 103,801 45,034 61,331 885 211,051 
Additions 173 97 4,808 5,078 
Disposals/ transfer (425) (425) 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ -----------
At 31 December 2015 103,974 45,131 66,139 460 215,704 

---------- ------------ ----------- ------------ ------------
Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2015 23,134 18,556 43,633 489 85,812 
Disposals/ transfer (425) (425) 
Charge for the year 1,863 3,582 6,078 153 11,676 

---------- ----------- ----------- ------------ ---------
At 31 December 2015 24,997 22,138 49,711 217 97,063 

-------- ------------ --------- ----------- ---------
Net book value at 31 December 2015 78,977 22,993 16,428 243 118,641 

== ===--=== =--= == ==--= 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

10 Other assets 

Interest receivable 
Investment properties (re.fer note 10.1 ) 
Prepayments and other assets 
Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 

l 0.1 Represents properties acquired in settlement of loans and advances. 

11 Due to banks 

Money market borrowings 
Demand deposits 

12 Deposits from customers 

Time deposits 
Savings accounts 
Current and other accounts 

Customer deposits by geographical area are as follows: 

Within the UAE 
Others 

13 Other liabilities 

Interest payable 
Unearned commission income 
Staff benefits payable 
Accrued expenses 
Manager's cheques 
Liabilities under acceptances 
Others 

2016 
AED'OOO 

67,357 

400,427 

12,649 

448,334 

928,767 
----

2016 
AED'OOO 

326,000 

3,002 

329,002 
=== 

2016 

AED'OOO 
9,321,295 

175,549 

2,679,841 

-------------
12,176,685 

==--==--= 

12,052,826 

123,859 

-----------
12,176,685 
=== 

2016 

AED'OOO 
101,406 

31,191 

8,598 

20,749 

23,520 

448,334 

24,307 

658,105 
=== 

2015 
AED'OOO 

48,715 

329,115 

10,422 

527,941 

----------
916,193 
=== 

2015 
AED'OOO 

7,346 

4,301 

11,647 

2015 

AED'OOO 
8,445,826 

141,665 

2,743,795 

-------------
11,331,286 

===== 

I 1,307,932 

23,354 

-------------
11,331,286 
=--== 

2015 

AED'OOO 
81,811 

31,861 

5,542 

22,906 

22,374 

527,941 

47,954 
----------
740,389 
--------
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14 Capital and reserves 

Share capital 
At 31 December 2016, the Group's authorised, issued and fully paid share capital was AED 1,588.13 million 
comprising 1,588.13 million shares of AED I each (at 31 December 2015: AED 1,588.13 million comprising 
1,588.13 million shares of AED I each). 

Reserves 

Legal reserves 

In accordance with the Article 239 of the U.A.E. Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, 10% of the annual profit is 
transferred to the Legal reserve. The Bank may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve equals 
50% of the nominal value of the paid up share capital. Transfers to the Legal reserve are made only at year end. The 
Legal reserve is not available for distribution. 

Special reserves 

In accordance with the Article 82 of Union Law No. I 0of1980, I 0% of the annual profit is transferred to the Special 
reserve. The Bank may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve equals 50% of the Bank's 
capital. 

Dividened 

At the Annual General Meeting of the bank held on 29 February 2016, it was resolved to pay cash dividend of AED 
119 million. During the year, Bank has paid this dividend to shareholders. 

15 Net interest income 

Interest income: 
Deposits with central bank and banks 
Debt securities 
Loans and advances to customers 

Interest expense: 
Due to banks 
Time deposits 
Call deposits 
Savings accounts and others 

16 Net fees and commission income 

Fees and commission income: 
Letters of credit fee 
Letters of guarantee fee 
Retail and corporate lending fees 
Commission on transfers 
Others 

Fees and commission expenses: 
Service charges and other expense 

2016 
AED'OOO 

9,796 
24,092 

735,695 

769,583 

(867) 
(253,841) 

(2,224) 
(1,552) 

(258,484) 
-----------
511,099 

2016 
AED'OOO 

49,252 
81,300 
42,974 
3,227 

23,004 

199,757 

(350) 

199,407 

2015 
AED'OOO 

6,464 
28,073 

691,957 

726,494 

(2,680) 
(219,945) 

(2,614) 
(1,114) 

(226,353) 
-----------
500,141 
====== 

2015 
AED'OOO 

47,902 
85,229 
27,249 

3,244 
19,293 

182,917 

(210) 

182,707 
== 
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17 Other income 

Dividends on investment .securities 
Rental and other income 
Gain on investment securities 
Fair value adjustment for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Fair value loss on investment property 

18 General and administrative expenses 

Personnel and related costs 
Premises and related expenses 
Others 

19 Net Impairment loss 

Specific impairment charge for the year net of recoveries during the year 
Recoveries (re.fer note 19.1 ) 

Collective provision 

Net impairment loss and collective provision 

2016 

AED'OOO 

5,079 

8,620 

19,352 

1,549 

(24,000) 

10,600 

2016 

AED'OOO 
(137,662) 

(19,489) 

(20,190) 

(177,341) 

2016 

AED'OOO 

408,392 

(142,203) 

266,189 

14,245 

280,434 

---

19.1 Includes AED 62 million (2015: AED 24 million) recovered from balances previously written off. 

20 Earnings per share 

2015 

AED'OOO 

5,744 

686 

4,971 

1,438 

(4,000) 

8,839 

2015 

AED'OOO 
(133,015) 

(18,990) 

(21,261) 

(173,266) 

====== 

2015 

AED'OOO 

249,582 

(35,622) 

213,960 

60,625 

274,585 

==== 

Basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank and weighted average 
number of ordinary shares. 

2016 2015 
AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Profit attributable to ordinary share holders 271,711 252,199 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding at 31 December 1,588,125 1,588,125 

Earnings per share (UAE Dirhams) 0.171 0.159 
--

At reporting date the Group does not have any instrument resulting in dilution of basic earnings per share. 
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21 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and deposits with Central Banks 
Due from banks maturing within three months 
Due to banks maturing within three months 

22 Related party transactions 

2016 

AED'OOO 

1,449,545 

462,197 

(329,002) 

------------
1,582,740 
==== 

2015 

/\ED'OOO 

1,551,922 

280,618 

(4,301) 

-------------
1,828,239 

======= 

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related parties including key 
management personnel and their related companies. Key management personnel are those persons having authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including 
any director, executive or otherwise, of the Group. The related party transactions are executed at the terms agreed 
between the parties. The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related 
expenses and income for the year are as follows: 

2016 2015 

Companies Companies 

associated associated 

Key with key Key with key 

management management management management 

personnel personnel personnel personnel 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 
Loans 

Loans outstanding at 31 December 48,036 543,930 38,389 580,593 
==--=== === ===== ====== 

Interest income earned during the year 1,636 26,540 3,163 38,074 
==== ===== 

Outstanding letters of credit and guarantees at 
31 December 5,428 48,555 4,950 56,185 

---- == ======= ======= 
Deposits 

Deposits at 31 December 332,333 722,642 270,134 665,427 
=== --- ===== ====== 

Interest expense during the year 7,907 20,821 7,248 17,053 
== ====== ======= 

None of the loans granted to related parties are impaired or past due as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). 

The loans extended to directors during the year are repayable over I year and bear interest at rates ranging from 4 % 
to 10 % per annum (2015: 4% to 10%). At 31 December 2016, outstanding loans and advances due from related 
parties are secured by deposits under lien amounting to AED 512.4 million (2015: AED 552.3 million). 
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22 Related party transactions (continued) 

Key management compensation 

Salaries and other short term benefits 
Termination benefits 

23 Commitments and contingent liabilities 

2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO 

9,350 9,760 
293 315 

9,643 10,075 

At any time, the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commitments take the form of 
approved loan facilities. Outstanding loan commitment have committed periods that do not extend beyond the normal 
underwriting and settlement period. 

The Group provides financial guarantees and letter of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third 
parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend up to a period of one year. 

The contractual amount of commitments and contingent liabilities are set out in the following table by category. 

Letters of credit 
Letters of guarantee 
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit 
Foreign exchange and forward commitments 

2016 

AED'OOO 

988,655 

6,997,355 

634,581 

234,003 

----------
8,854,594 
== 

2015 

AED'OOO 

1,123,941 

7,175,198 

925,815 

136,327 

-------------
9,361,281 
=== 

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably less than the 
amount of the commitment because the Group does not generally expect third party to draw funds under the 
agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent 
future cash requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded. 

Exposure by geography as on 31 December 

United Arab Emirates 
Other Arab Countries 

Irrevocable commitments 
to extend credit 

2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO 

634,581 925,815 

634,581 925,815 
=== 

Foreign exchange and 
forward commitments 

2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO 

234,003 136,327 

Other commitments and 
contingent liabilities 

2016 2015 

AED'OOO 

7,969,325 

16,685 

AED'OOO 

8,287,655 

11,484 

234,003 136,327 7,986,010 8,299,139 
===== == ==--=== 
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23 Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued) 

Exposure by currency as on 31 
December 

Irrevocable commitments Foreign exchange and Other commitments and 
to extend credit forward commitments contingent liabilities 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 
Ali:D'OOO AED'OOO Ali:D'OOO AED'OOO Ali:D'OOO AED'OOO 

Foreign currency 1,779 234,003 136,327 612,000 745,014 
AED 632,802 925,815 (234,003) ( 136,327) 7,374,0IO 7,554, 125 

------------ ------------ ------------- ------------- ------------ ------------
Total 634,581 925,815 7,986,0IO 8,299,139 

===--== == === ==== == == 
Exposure by industry segment as on 
31 December 
Agriculture, and allied activities 928 1,718 

Mining and quarrying 1,806 9,839 17,110 
Manufacturing 48,924 36,419 780,609 1,057,319 

Electricity, gas and water 
Construction and real estate 231,628 183,641 5,244,423 5,167,342 
Trade 23,000 42,920 234,003 136,327 871,462 864,562 

Transport, storage and 
communication 11,686 10,653 176,407 116,324 

Financial institutions 113,663 74,480 
Other services 213,532 281,691 554,627 452,988 
Government 72,633 13,137 247,098 
Loans to individuals 5,045 20,250 1,269 4,389 

Loans to high net worth individuals 100,766 268,366 15,509 136 
Others 7,436 204,137 295,673 

----------- ------------- ------------- ---------- ------------ -----------
Total 634,581 925,815 234,003 136,327 7,986,010 8,299,139 

=--==== ======== === ==--= 

Exposure by maturity as on 31 
December 
Less than 3 months 218,273 398,096 234,003 136,327 2,628,990 2,732,072 
3 months to one year 416,308 527,719 5,357,020 5,567,067 

------------ --------- --------- ---------- ---------- -------
Total 634,581 925,815 234,003 136,327 7,986,010 8,299,139 

== =--===---= == 
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24 Accounting classification of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The table below shows a reconciliation between line items in the consolidated statement of financial position and 
categories of financial instruments. 

Others at Total 
amortised carrying 

At 31 December 2016 FVTPL FVTOCI cost amount 
AED '000 AED '000 AED'OOO AED '000 

Financial assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 1,863,727 1,863,727 

Due from banks 562,197 562,197 

Investment securities 4,610 254,489 446,552 705,651 

Loans and advances to customers 11,953,525 11,953,525 

Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 448,334 448,334 

Other financial assets 48 77,447 77,495 
------------ ------------ ------------ -----------

4,658 254,489 15,351,782 15,610,929 
===== ======== === ==== 

Financial liabilities 
Due to banks 329,002 329,002 

Deposits from customers 12,l76,685 12,176,685 

Liabilities under acceptances 448,334 448,334 

Other financial liabilities 168,219 168,219 
------------ ------------ ------------- ------------

13,122,240 13,122,240 
======= ===== =====--= ==== 

At 31 December 2015 

Financial assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 1,786,104 l,786,104 

Due from banks 382,616 382,616 

Investment securities 4,379 249,614 548,715 802,708 

Loans and advances to customers 10,901,149 10,901,149 

Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 527,941 527,941 

Other financial assets (203) 52,703 52,500 
------------ ------------ ---------- ------------

4,176 249,614 14,199,228 14,453,018 
=== == == == 

Financial liabilities 
Due to banks 11,647 11,647 

Deposits from customers ll,331,286 11,331,286 

Liabilities under acceptances 527,941 527,941 

Other financial liabilities 171,530 171,530 
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

12,042,404 12,042,404 
========== ===--= === ==== 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

25 Fair value of financial instrument 

a) Fair value hierarchy of assets/liabilities measured at fair value 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that arc traded in active markets are based on quoted market 
prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, tht Group determines fair values using other 
valuation techniques. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is 
less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market 
factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument. 

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements. 

Level I: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 th;:it are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active 
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less 
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from 
market data. 

Level 3: lnputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique 
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the 
instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar 
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences 
between the instruments. 

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar 
instruments for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include 
risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and 
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and 
correlations. 

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be 
received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. 

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair 
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values 
recognised in the statement of financial position. 

At 31 December 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED '000 
Financial assets 
FVTPL - equity securities 4,610 4,610 

FVTOCI - equity securities 143,007 111,482 254,489 

Non financial assets 
Investment properties 400,427 400,427 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
147,617 511,909 659,526 

=--=== ==--= === ===== 

At 31December2015 

Financial assets 
FVTPL - equity securities 4,379 4,379 

FVTOCI - equity securities 128,132 121,482 249,614 

Non financial assets 

Investment properties 329,115 329,115 
--------- ------------ ----------- ------------

132,511 450,597 583,108 
---- === =--=--= 
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25 Fair value of financial instrument (continued) 

a) Fair value hierarchy of assets/liabilities measured at fair value (continued) 

Although the Bank believes that it's estimates at fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or 
assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair value measurement in level-3, changing the 
assumptions by 5%(+/-), would not have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements. 

Valuation of investment securities 

The Finance department constantly monitors the progress of its investments by conducting its own valuation 
assessment. Depending on the nature of the underlying asset, quantitative methods are used such as residual value, 
DCF/scenario analysis or comparable market valuation. The unobservable inputs are selected based on various 
indust1y and macroeconomic factors that management considers as reasonable. Qualitative methods which involve 
taking into consideration the market and economic outlook are also employed. 

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or 
assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair value measurements in Level 3, 5% change 
in the underlying assumptions of these investments would not have any significant effects. 

Valuation of investment properties 

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate 
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being 
valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Group's investment property portfolio annually. 

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs 

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment properties, as well 
as the significant unobservable inputs used. 

The Group has taken the highest and best use fair values for the fair value measurement of its investment properties. 

Valuation technique 

Cost method 

Income capitalisation method 

Sales comparison method 

Significant unobservable inputs Interrelationship between key 
unobservable inputs and fair 

. value measurements 

Expected market rental growth rate If there is a change in the estimate of 
expected market rental growth rate. 

Risk adjusted discount rates If there is a change in the estimate of 
risk adjusted discount rates. 

Free hold property The property is not free hold. 

Free of covenants, third party rights 
and obligations 

Statutory and legal validity 

If the property becomes subject to 
any covenants, rights and 
obligations. 

If the property becomes subject to 
any adverse legal notices I 
judgments. 

Prices of similar sites or properties in If there is a reduction in prices of 
the vicinity properties in the immediate vicinity. 
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b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyses them by 
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised. 

Total 
Total fair carrying 

At 31December2016 Level I Level 2 Level3 value amount 
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 Alm'OOO 

Financial assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 1,863,727 1,863,727 1,863,727 

Due from banks 562,197 562,197 562,197 

Investment securities 433,891 25,015 458,906 446,552 

Loans and advances to customers 11,953,525 11,953,525 11,953,525 

Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 448,334 448,334 448,334 

Other financial assets 77,495 77,495 77,495 
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
433,891 2,528,434 12,401,859 15,364,184 15,351,830 
=== === = ----

Financial liabilities 
Due to banks 329,002 329,002 329,002 

Deposits from customers 12,176,685 12,176,685 12,176,685 

Liabilities under acceptances 448,334 448,334 448,334 

Other financial liabilities 168,219 168,219 174,121 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
12,673,906 448,334 13, 122,240 13,128,142 

--- == = 

Total 
Total fair carrying 

At 31December2015 Level 1 Leve12 Level3 value amount 
AED'OOO AED '000 AED '000 AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Financial assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 1,786,104 1,786,104 1,786,104 

Due from banks 382,616 382,616 382,616 

Investment securities 527,111 25,257 552,368 548,715 

Loans and advances to customers 10,901,149 10,901,149 10,901,149 

Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 527,941 527,941 527,941 

Other financial assets 52,500 52,500 52,500 
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

527, 111 2,246,477 11,429,090 14,202,678 14,199,025 
= ---- ---- = 

Financial liabilities 
Due to banks 11,647 11,647 11,647 

Deposits from customers 11,331,286 11,331,286 ll,331,286 

Liabilities under acceptances 527,941 527,941 527,941 

Other financial liabilities 171,530 171,530 171,530 
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

11,514,463 527,941 12,042,404 12,042,404 
----
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b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued) 

1. In respect of those financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, which are of short term nature 
(up to l year), management believes that carrying amount is equivalent to it's fair value. 

11. In respect of investments in sukuks/bonds, management has used the quoted price when available to assess fair value 
or used a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) methodology based on market observable inputs. 

iii. Long term loans and advances to customers are fair valued based on DCF which takes into account original 
underlying cash borrower credit grading and expected prepayments. These foatures are used to estimate expected 
cash flows and discounted at risk-adjusted rates. However, this technique is subject to inherent limitations, such as 
estimation of the appropriate risk-adjusted discount rate, and different assumptions and inputs would yield different 
results. 

iv. Fair values of deposits from banks and customers is estimated using DCF, applying the rates that are offered for 
deposits of similar maturities and terms. The fair value of deposits payable on demand is considered to be the amount 
payable at the reporting date. 

26 Use of estimates and judgments 

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
are as follows: 

(a) Impairment losses on financial instruments carried at amortised cost 

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to financial assets evaluated 
individually for impairment and is based upon management's best estimate of the present value of cash flows that are 
expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes judgments about a counterparty's 
financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its 
merits, and the workout strategy and estimates of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by 
credit risk function. 

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolio of loans and advances and 
investment securities measured at amortised cost with similar credit risk characteristics when there is objective 
evidence to suggest that they contain impaired financial assets, but the individual impaired items have not yet been 
identified. In assessing the need for collective loss allowances, management considers factor such as credit quality, 
portfolio size, concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are 
made to define the way inherent losses are modeled and to determine the required input parameters, based on 
historical experience and current economic conditions. The accuracy of the allowances depends on the estimate of 
the future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used in 
determining collective allowances. 

(b) Fair value of derivatives and unquoted securities 

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation 
techniques. Where valuation techniques (such as models) are used to determine fair values, these are tested before 
they are used and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To 
the extent practical, models use only observable data, however area such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), 
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could 
affect reported fair values of financial instruments. 
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a) Introduction and overview 

The Group has exposure to several risk categories and it has frameworks to cover all material risks across the Bank, 
in addition to the following primary risks: 

• Credit risk 
• Liquidity risk 
• Market risk 

• Operational risk 

• The other distinct risks included in the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) of the Bank are 
concentration, business I strategic, regulatory, compliance, reputation and legal risks. Moreover, in light of the 
increased cyber security risks, more emphasis is being placed on information security risk. 

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above primary risks, the Group's objectives, 
risk management frameworks, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group's capital 
management plan. 

Governance and Risk Management Framework (RMF) 

The Board of Directors (the "Board" or "BOD") has the ultimate responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 
the Group's Risk Management Framework. There are many trends that significantly alter the risk landscape, with 
changes to how Bank responds and manages risk. 

The Board level Executive Committee (EC), has been entrusted with the mandate for risk management decisions. 
The EC is assisted by the Audit Committee and the following Senior Management Committees: Asset Liability 
Committee (ALCO); Management Credit Committee; and Compliance Committee. 

Considering the pace of change and evolution in risk management and to meet the structural changes in the banking 
industry and regulations, Board involvement in Governance and Risk Management has also been up-scaled by the 
formulation and approval of the following additional Committees: 

a. Board Committee on Corporate Governance; 
b. Board Risk Policy Committee; and 
c. Remuneration and Compensation Committee. 

Bank is also now in the process of implementing Information Security, Basel III Frameworks & appropriate 
committees and task forces have been formed. Control is maintained by assigning distinct responsibilities to members 
of the senior management. 

The Group continues to review the entire process, inherent risk factors and controls and consider opportunities by 
rationalizing regulatory risk management initiatives. Experiencing from the crisis, and to deliver value beyond mere 
adherence, major component of RMF are ICAAP; stress testing; and capital management plan. The ICAAP exercise 
and stress testing have demonstrated that the Group has sufficient capital buffers for any extreme circumstances or 
scenarios. The Group has adequate risk bearing capacity at 99.9% confidence level and all prudential ratios are at 
comfortable levels. 

Regular audit of business units and Group credit processes are undertaken by internal audit. Furthermore, Control 
and Compliance functions have been enhanced. 

A< 
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27 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

a) Introduction and overview (continued) 

Under the purview of the Risk Management Department, the Group is making steady progress in its initiatives to 
embrace an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework to enable the business and fonctional units to manage all 
risks in a pro-active manner while integrating concepts of strategic planning, operational risk management, internal 
controls, and compliances. These include methods and processes, encompassing all risk dimensions to seize the 
opportunities related to the achievement of the Group's objectives. 

Credit Risk Management Depatiment (CRMD) has formulated Credit Risk policies aligned with Group's strategies, 
goals vis-a-vis risk appetite, including collateral management policies, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, 
risk rating in compliance with regulatory requirements. 

Frameworks for translating policies defining "risk appetite" and "risk tolerance" levels to measurement techniques 
are in the advanced stages to link them to appropriate risk limits, controls and capital management planning (CMP) 
frameworks. CMP which was developed and rolled out in 2015 and Stress Testing (ST) developed and implemented 
in 2016, have been embedded into the ICAAP framework. Through CMP and ST, the Group strives to maximize 
shareholder value, strategic planning, risk based pricing, and risk adjusted performance measurement in addition to 
fulfilling regulatory requirements. 

Review of risk management policies and systems is a regular activity to reflect changes in market conditions, 
products and services offered by the Group in order to present a comprehensive view of risk from a strategic and 
operational perspective and have a process to address risk proactively. 

b) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterpatiy to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's loans and advances to customers, balances 
due from banks and debt securities. 

It is also the risk of loss, or of adverse change in the financial situation, resulting from fluctuations in the credit 
standing of issuers of securities, counterparties and any debtors to whom the Group is exposed - in the form of 
counterpa1iy default risk, or (credit) spread risk, or market risk concentrations. 

Management of credit risk 
The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibilities of the management of credit risk to its Executive 
Committee (EC) and Management Credit Committee (MCC). Changes to discretionary limits are subject to the 
Board's approval. Similarly, facilities in excess of discretionary limits are approved by the EC or the Board of 
Directors. 

A separate and centralised credit risk management division ("CRMD") is responsible for oversight of the Group's 
credit risk, which comprises of various independent functions, including but not limited to: credit assessment and 
evaluation; monitoring; control; and administration and documentation. The Group is expanding its remedial and 
recovery functions. 

The broad functions of CRMD includes: 

- Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral requirements, credit assessment, 
risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory 
requirements; 

- Reviewing and assessing credit risk in accordance with delegation & authority structure, limits and discretionary 
powers prior to facilities being committed to customers. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject to the same 
review process; 

- Limiting concentrations of credit exposure to counterparties and industries by establishing exposure caps and 
monitoring sectoral exposures. Preferred sectors are identified regularly in line with market dynamics. Accordingly 
marketing initiatives are directed either to expand or to reduce balance risk I reward trade offs; 
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27 Financial Risk Management (co11tinuetl) 

b) Credit Risk (co11ti11ued) 

Management of credit risk (continued) 

- Reviewing compliance on an ongoing basis with approved exposure limits relating to counterparties, industries and 
countries. Regular reports are provided to the management, MCC, Executive Committee and the Board of Directors 
on the quality of portfolios and appropriate corrective action is initiated when necessary; and 

- Providing advice, guidance and specialised skills to business units to promote best practices throughout the Group 
in the management of credit risk. 

For financial institutions, the Group uses external ratings issued by Standard and Poor's, Moody's, Fitch and Capital 
Intelligence or other recognised credit rating agencies in order to manage its credit risk exposure. 

The Group has adopted a Standardised Approach for credit risk and market risk and a Basic Indicator Approach for 
Operational Risk. Models for Internal Rating, Group's own risk grading categorizing the exposmes according to the 
degree of risk of financial loss have been developed and are in use since 2012. The current risk grading framework 
consists of eight grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of default and the availability of collateral or other credit 
risk mitigants. In addition, the Group has proactively developed frameworks for IRB (Internal Rating Based) 
approach in anticipation of Central Bank guidelines. In preparation for the implementation of the IRB approaches 
and building a strong database, the Group has introduced online processing of credit applications and rating of all 
counterparties. The Group is in the advanced stages of developing a risk sensitive framework with an objective of 
levying risk premiums. The rating scale has also been calibrated to the Probability of Default (PD) scale and is 
being embedded into Foundation Internal Ratings-Based (FIRB) and AIRB models in a phased, step-up manner. 
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b) Credit Risk (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk 

The Group measures its exposure to credit risk by reference to the gross carrying amount of financial assets less 
amounts offset, interest suspended and impairment losses, if any. 

Carrying amount, net 

Individually impaired 

Substandard 
Doubtful 
Loss 

Total impaired portfolio 
Interest suspended 
Specific allowance for impairment 

Carrying amount 

Past due but not impaired 
Neither past due nor impaired 

Total non-impaired portfolio 
Collective impairment provision 

Carrying amount 

Total carrying amount 

Loans and advances 
2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO 

11,953,525 10,901,149 
===== ======== 

195,275 388, !04 

455,936 433,117 

386,726 139,299 
------------ ------------
1,037,937 960,520 

(38,085) (28,581) 

(799,035) (722,746) 
------------ ------------

200,817 209,193 
----------- ------------

114,543 96,189 

11,862,664 10,806,021 
------------ ________ .. ,,, __ 

11,977,207 10,902,210 

(224,499) (210,254) 
------------

___ .. ________ 

11,752,708 I0,691,956 
------------ ------------

11,953,525 10,901,149 
==== ======= 

Due from banks Debt securities 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

562,197 382,616 446,552 548,715 
===== ======== ===--= ======== 

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

562,197 382,616 446,552 548,715 
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

562,197 382,616 446,552 548,715 

------------ ------------ ----------- ------------
562,197 382,616 446,552 548,715 

------------ ------------ ---------- ------------
562,197 382,616 446,552 548,715 

==== ======= == ====== 

The Group has a defined policy for delinquency, monitoring and controlling such delinquent accounts, in line with 
the CB UAE and Basel II guidelines. 
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b) Credit Risk (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk (continued) 

The table below sets out the credit quality of debt securities which is based on the rating of the respective debt 
security. The analysis has been based on 'Standard & Poor's ratings (or its equivalent) where applicable 

Government bonds Corporate bonds Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Rated A- and above 18,365 18,365 43,296 125,778 61,661 144,143 

Rated BBB+ to BB 61,802 80,889 106,437 107,031 168,239 187,920 
Unrated 135,846 135,846 80,806 80,806 216,652 216,652 

216,013 235,IOO 230,539 313,615 446,552 548,715 

Investments in Unrated portfolio represents bonds with no specific credit rating, however the issuers are rated A+ to 
BBB+. 

Impaired loans and advances 

Impaired loans and advances are financial assets for which the Group determines that it is probable that it will be 
unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan/securities agreement(s). 
These loans are classified as substandard, doubtful or loss, as appropriate, which is in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by the CB U AE. 

Past due but not impaired loans 
These are loans and investments in debt securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but 
the Group believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of a repayment source such as assigned 
receivables, the level of security/collateral available and/or the possible scope of collection of amounts owed to the 
Group. 

Allowances for impairment 

The Group establishes allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate for incurred losses in its loan 
portfolio. The main components of this allowance are specific losses that relates to individually significant exposures 
and a collective impairment established for groups of homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have been incurred 
but have not been identified on loans that are considered individually insignificant as well as individually significant 
that were subject to individual assessment for impairment but not found to be individually impaired. Assets carried at 
fair value through profit or loss are not subject to impairment testing as the measure of fair value reflects the credit 
quality of each asset. 
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b) Credit Risk (continued) 

Write-off policy 

The Group writes off loans/securities (and any related allowances for impairment losses) when it determines that 
there is no scope of recovery and the loans are uncollectible. The decision is reached after considering information 
such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower's financial position such that the borrower can no 
longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure and 
there is no scope to pursue any other avenues. However, in the event there are future chances for recovery, the 
account is kept open. 

Collateral and other credit enhancements 

The Group holds collateral against funded and unfunded financing facilities in the form of cash margins, 
pledges/liens over deposits, mortgage interests over property, other registered securities over assets and guarantees. 
The Group accepts guarantees mainly from well reputed local or international banks/financial institutions, well 
established local or multinational organisations, large corporates and high net worth individuals. Estimates of fair 
value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing which are generally updated during 
annual reviews or earlier as the Group deems it prudent given the circumstances and market trend I conditions. 
Collateral is generally not held over loans and advances to other banks or financial institutions, except when 
securities are held as a part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity. 

It is the Group's policy to ensure that loans are extended to customers within their capability to service interest and 
repay principal instead of relying excessively on securities/collaterals. Accordingly, depending on customers' credit 
worthiness and the type of product, facilities may be unsecured. Nevertheless, collateral is and can be an important 
credit risk mitigant. 

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against loans and advances to 
customers is shown below. Collateral values reflect the maximum exposure or the value of the collateral whichever is 
lower. Actual pledged values in most cases are higher. 

2016 2015 
AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Against neither past due nor impaired 
Cash 2,748,314 2,637,429 

Commercial and industrial property 2,895,229 2,650,798 

Residential property 4,456 5,035 

Equities 180,952 420,954 

Other 751,339 782,641 

6,580,290 6,496,857 

Against past due but not impaired 
Cash 23,708 21,756 

Commercial and industrial property 17,613 45,688 

Equities 
Other 5,137 44 

46,458 67,488 

Against impaired 
Cash 15,582 6,714 

Commercial and industrial property 119,493 128,398 

Equities 7,770 7,753 

Other 9,584 11,820 

152,429 154,685 

Total collateral held 6,779,177 6,719,030 
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b) Credit Risk (continued) 

In accordance with the disclosure requirement of BASEL II Pillar 3 and the CB UAE guidelines, concentration of 
credit risk by industry segment and currency are as follows: 

Loans and advances Debt Securities Due from Banks 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 
AED '000 AED '000 Alm '000 AED'OOO AED '000 AED'OOO 
==--===== ======= ==== ======== === ======== 

Gross credit exposure by industry 
segment 
Agriculture, fishing and related activities 529 72 
Mining and quarrying 37,837 270,422 
Manufacturing 2,233,903 2,024,926 
Electricity, gas and water 61,802 14,608 
Construction 2,826,168 2,670,730 
Real estate 1,545,907 1,230,011 29,384 29,384 
Trade 1,711,545 1,483,167 
Transport, storage and communication 104,934 104,950 
Financial institutions 990,891 1,005,950 131,773 214,849 562,197 382,616 
Other services 1,414,719 706,131 
Government 578,455 1,127,400 154,211 235,100 
Loans to individuals 76,388 76,972 
Loans to high net worth individuals 993,711 872,573 
Others 500,157 289,426 69,382 54,774 
Total 13,015,144 11,862,730 446,552 548,715 562,197 382,616 

Gross credit exposure by currency 

Foreign currency 404,072 420,428 421,537 523,458 179,653 238,817 
AED 12,611,072 11,442,302 25,015 25,257 382,544 143,799 
Total 13,015,144 11,862,730 446,552 548,715 562,197 382,616 

Concentration by location 

United Arab Emirates 12,473,909 11,715,089 446,552 548,715 378,831 154,364 
Other G.C.C. 87,330 36,730 27,768 17,036 
Other Arab countries 126,405 110,911 77,587 38,384 
Western Europe and others 327,500 78,011 172,832 
Gross total 13,015,144 11,862,730 446,552 548,715 562,197 382,616 
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b) Credit Risk (continued) 

Impaired loans and advances by industry segment and geographical location as defined by the CB UAE: 

Specific 
2016 Overdues 90 Provisions Net Adjustments 

days and and Interest impaired 
Concentration by industry segment above in suspense assets Write-offs Write-backs 

AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 
Mining and quarrying 2 2 4,878 
Manufacturing 178,499 172,098 6,401 15,439 6,140 
Electricity, gas and water 
Construction and real estate 228,863 152,115 76,748 I 89,288 49,245 
Trade 492,758 428,337 64,421 47,094 6,000 
Transport, Storage and Communication 10,121 6,978 3,143 12,331 
Financial Institutions 
Other services 19,517 14,215 5,302 988 
Government 
Loans to individuals 14,223 10,510 3,713 4,346 752 
Loans to high net worth individuals 93,817 52,834 40,983 15,963 
Others 137 31 106 1,990 
Total 1,037,937 837,120 200,817 274,364 80,090 

Concentration by geography 

United Arab Emirates 1,037,440 836,905 200,535 274,364 80,090 
Others 497 215 282 
Total 1,037,937 837,120 200,817 274,364 80,090 

2015 

Concentration by industry segment 

Mining and quarrying 5,279 4,843 436 
Manufacturing 200,772 182,496 18,276 29,446 
Electricity, gas and water 
Construction and real estate 387,288 304,821 82,467 122,810 609 
Trade 232,689 164,522 68,167 96,515 3,500 

Transport, Storage and Communication 19,952 18,173 1,779 14,647 
Financial Institutions 6,593 

Other services 11,850 11,850 346 
Government 
Loans to individuals 10,406 9,453 953 68 
Loans to high net worth individuals 90,143 53,028 37,115 38,382 617 

Others 2,141 2,141 l,526 10 
Total 960,520 751,327 209,193 303,740 11,329 

Concentration by geography 

United Arab Emirates 959,727 750,588 209,139 303,740 11,329 

Others 793 739 54 

Total 960,520 751,327 209,193 303,740 11,329 

At reporting date the Group did not have any impaired loans overdue less than 90 days (2015: Nil). 
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b) Credit Risk (contillued) 

Analysis of the Group's exposure based on BASEL II standardised approach: 

All figures in AED '000 

On balance Off balance 
Risk 

sheet sheet 
Credit risk mitigation {CRM} weighted 

31 December 2016 assets 

Asset classes 
Gross Gross Exposure 

CRM AfterCRM 
outstanding outstanding bcforcCRM 

Claims on sovereign 2,497,282 2,493 2,499,775 2,497,282 80,241 

Claims on public sector entities (PSEs) 79,888 13,137 93,025 82,515 

Claims on banks 693,714 147,202 840,915 775,028 295,636 

Claims on securities firm 
Claims on corporates and GREs 9,604,840 7, 172,684 16,727,359 2,284,168 13,098,393 I0,818,906 

Claims included in retail portfolio 1,703,288 1,767,193 3,470,446 681,157 2,679,576 1,999,407 

Claims secured by residential property 7,680 1,200 8,880 7,680 2,688 

Claims secured by commercial real estate 70,676 2,811 73,487 8,981 70,676 61,695 

Past due loans 1,148,969 196,208 567,618 32,730 399,304 444,444 

High risk categories 428,427 400,427 400,427 600,641 

Other assets 534,286 531,829 531,829 449,319 
Total 16,769,050 9,302,928 25,213,761 3,007,036 20,542,710 14,752,977 

31December2015 

Asset classes 

Claims on sovereign 2,493,391 45,622 2,539,013 2,539,013 67,556 

Claims on public sector entities (PSEs) 569,609 341,655 911,264 911,264 

Claims on banks 649,705 649,705 649,705 313,548 

Claims on securities firm 30,000 30,000 7,500 22,500 22,500 

Claims on corporates and GREs 7,736,777 8,575,285 16,251,607 1,740,575 14,511,032 9,902,653 

Claims included in retail portfolio 1,909,688 1,769,816 3,667,466 568,839 3,098,627 2, 185, 114 

Claims secured by residential property 28 28 28 IO 
Claims secured by commercial real estate 76,752 2,396 79,148 13,511 65,637 63,241 

Past due loans 1,056,709 !02,730 498,797 28,347 470,450 469,977 

High risk categories 301,143 297,143 297,143 445,715 

Other assets 553,706 551,249 551,249 470,524 
Total 15,347,508 10,867,504 25,475,420 2,358,772 23,116,648 13,940,838 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

27 Financial risk management (continued) 

b) Credit Risk (continue<lj 

Analysis of the Group's exposure based on BASEL II Standardised Approach - rated and unrated: 

2016 Al/figures in AED '000 
Gross Credit Exposures 

Rated Unrated 
Exposure 

Asset classes before CRM 

Claims on sovereign 2,499,775 2,500,225 

Claims on public sector entities (PSEs) 93,025 93,025 
Claims on banks 493,659 347,256 840,915 

Claims on securities firm 

Claims on corporates and GREs 14,608 16,712,7?1 16,727,359 

Claims included in retail portfolio 3,470,446 3,470,446 

Claims secured by residential property 8,880 8,880 

Claims secured by commercial real estate 73,487 73,487 

Past due loans 569,945 569,945 

High risk categories 400,427 400,427 

Other assets 531,829 531,829 
Total 508,267 24,707,821 25,216,538 

2015 
Gross Credit Exposures 

Rated Unrated 
Exposure 

Asset classes before CHM 

Claims on sovereign 2,539,013 2,539,013 

Claims on public sector entities (PSEs) 98,253 813,011 911,264 

Claims on banks 501,741 147,964 649,705 

Claims on securities firm 30,000 30,000 

Claims on corporates and GREs 98,765 16,152,842 16,251,607 

Claims included in retail portfolio 3,667,466 3,667,466 

Claims secured by residential property 28 28 

Claims secured by commercial real estate 79,148 79,148 

Past due loans 498,797 498,797 

High risk categories 297, 143 297, 143 

Other assets 551,249 551,249 

Total 698,759 24,776,661 25,475,420 
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c) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with it's financial 
liabilities as they become due and at a reasonable cost. Liquidity risk can be segregated into three categories:-

!) Mismatch or structural liquidity risk: the risk in the Group's current consolidated statement of financial position 
structure due to maturity transformation in the cash flows of individual positions; 

2) Contingency liquidity risk: the risk that future events may require a significantly larger amount of cash than what 
the Group's projections allow. This can arise due to unusual deviations of timing of cash flows (term liquidity risk), 
e.g., non-contractual prolongation of loans, or unexpected draw downs on committed loan facilities (call/ withdrawal 
liquidity risk); and 

3) Market liquidity risk: the risk that the Group cannot easily offset or eliminate a position at the market price 
because of market disruption or inadequate market depth. 

Management of liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk management has remained at the helm of risk management and has close attention of the Board of 
Directors. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Group's reputation. All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by 
Board & ALCO. The key elements of the Group's liquidity strategy are as follows: 

a) Maintaining a diversified funding base consisting of customer deposits (both retail and corporate), wholesale 
market deposits and maintaining contingency facilities; 

b) Carrying a portfolio of high quality liquid assets, diversified by currency and maturity; 

c) Monitoring liquidity ratios, maturity mismatches, behavioral characteristics of the Group's financial assets and 
liabilities, and the extent to which the Group's assets are encumbered and hence not available as potential collateral 
for obtaining funding; and 

d) Carrying out stress testing of the Group's liquidity position. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The key measure used by the Group for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net liquid assets (i.e. total assets by 
maturity against total liabilities by maturity) and its loans to deposit ratio. Details of the Group's net liquid assets are 
summarised in the table below by the maturity profile of the Group's assets and liabilities based on the contractual 
repayments. The maturity profile is monitored by the management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. 
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c) Liquidity Risk (contiuued) 

Maturities of assets and liabilities 

At 31 December 2016 
Assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 
Due from banks 
Investment securities 
Loans and advances to customers 
Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and equity 
Due to banks 
Deposits from customers 
Liabilities under acceptances 
Other liabilities 
Equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

At 31 December 2015 
Assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 
Due from banks 
Investment securities 
Loans and advances to customers 
Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and equity 
Due to banks 
Deposits from customers 
Liabilities under acceptances 
Other liabilities 
Equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

Less than 
3 months 
AED'OOO 

1,649,545 
462,197 
284,114 

2,529,115 

320,666 

69,448 
--------------
5,315,085 
====== 

329,002 
5,514,053 

320,666 
132,945 

--------------
6,296,666 

======== 

Less than 
3 months 
AED'OOO 

l,551,922 
280,618 
253,993 

2,393,289 

452,513 

50,323 
--------------
4,982,658 
=== 

4,301 
5,698,120 

452,513 
120,274 

--------------
6,275,208 
===--== 

3 months 
to 1 year 
AED'OOO 

205,000 
100,000 
22,280 

5,198,855 

79,320 

12,791 
--------------
5,518,246 
===== 

6,219,657 

79,320 
36,695 

--------------
6,335,672 

======== 

3 months 
to 1 year 
AED'OOO 

225,000 
101,998 
101,089 

4,555,551 

49,666 

11,271 
--------------
5,044,575 
===--= 

7,346 
5,241,171 

49,666 
38,262 

--------------
5,336,445 
=== 

I year 
and above Total 
AED'OOO AED'OOO 

9,182 1,863,727 
562,197 

399,257 705,651 
4,225,555 11,953,525 

48,348 448,334 
111,440 111,440 
398,194 480,433 

------------- --------------
5,191,976 16,125,307 
==== 

329,002 
442,975 12,176,685 

48,348 448,334 
40,13 l 209,771 

2,961,515 2,961,515 
-------------- --------------
3,492,969 16,125,307 

======== ===== 

1 year 
and above Total 
AED'OOO AED'OOO 

9,182 1,786,104 
382,616 

447,626 802,708 
3,952,309 10,901,149 

25,762 527,941 
118,641 118,641 
326,658 388,252 

------------ --------------
4,880,178 14,907,411 
=== == 

11,647 
391,995 11,331,286 

25,762 527,941 
53,912 212,448 

2,824,089 2,824,089 
-------------- --------------
3,295,758 14,907,411 
====== === 

Maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the outstanding period from the reporting 
date to the contracted or expected maturity dates. 
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c) Liquidity Risk (continued) 

Residual contractual maturity of financial liabilities 

The following table shows the undiscounted cash flows on the Group's financial liabilities on the basis of their 
earliest possible contractual maturity. The Group's expected cash flow on these instruments may vary significantly 
from this analysis, for example demand deposits from customers are expected to maintain a stable or increasing 
balance and un recognized loan commitments arc not expected to be drawn down immediately. 

2016 

Non-derivative liabilities 
Due to banks 
Deposits from customers 
Liabilities for acceptances 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

2015 

Non-derivative liabilities 
Due to banks 
Deposits from customers 
Liabilities for acceptances 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

d) Market Risk 

Carrying 
amount 

AED'OOO 

329,002 
12,176,685 

448,334 
209,771 

------------
13,163,792 
===== 

11,647 
11,331,286 

527,941 
212,448 

--------------
12,083,322 
=== 

Gross 
nominal 
outnow 

AED'OOO 

(329,328) 
(12,440,866) 

(448,334) 
(209,771) 

--------------
(13,428,299) 
====== 

(11,870) 
(11,542,230) 

(527,941) 
(212,448) 

---------------
(12,294,489) 

Less than 3 3 months 

months to I year 1 to 5 year 

AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

(329,328) 
(5,564,261) (6,406,756) (469,849) 

(320,666) (79,320) (48,348) 

(132,945) (36,695) (40, 131) 

--------------- -------------- --------------
(6,347,200) (6,522,771) (558,328) 
=--=== ==== === 

(4,301) (7,569) 
(5,747,870) (5,371,401) (422,959) 

(452,513) (49,666) (25,762) 

(120,274) (38,262) (53,912) 

-------------- --------------- --------------
(6,324,958) (S,466,898) (502,633) 
===== == =--= 

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates 
and credit spreads (not relating to change in the obligor's/issuer's credit standing) - will affect the Group's profit or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters to ensure the Group's solvency while optimizing the return on 
risk. 

Management of market risk 

The Group separates its exposure to market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios 
mainly include positions arising from market making and proprietary position taking, together with financial assets 
and liabilities that are managed on a fair value basis. 

The Group has a very limited trading portfolio, hence it is not exposed to any significant market risk in respect of 
trading portfolio. 
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d) Market Risk (continued) 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash 
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed 
principally through monitoring interest rate gaps. A summary of the Group's interest rate gap position on non-trading 
po1tfolios is as follows: 

Assets and liabilities repricing profile 

Effective 
interest rate Less than 3 3 months to 1 more than 1 Non-interest 

% months year year sensitive Total 
AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

Assets 
Cash and deposits with central banks 0.44 915,412 205,000 743,315 1,863,727 
Due from banks 0.64 319,866 100,000 142,331 562,197 
Investment securities 4.19 705,651 705,651 
Loans and advances to customers 6.19 2,529,115 5,198,855 4,225,555 11,953,525 
Customers' indebtedness for acceptances 448,334 448,334 
Property and equipment 111,440 111,440 
Other assets 480,433 480,433 

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------
Total assets 3,764,393 5,503,855 4,225,555 2,631,504 16,125,307 

==== ======= ==--== ==== ==--==== 

Liabilities and equity 

Due to banks 0.78 326,000 3,002 329,002 
Deposits from customers 2.17 2,683,527 6,219,657 442,975 2,830,526 12,176,685 
Liabilities under acceptances 448,334 448,334 
Other liabilities 209,771 209,771 
Equity 2,961,515 2,961,515 

-------------- -------------- -------------- ....................... ___ --------------
Total liabilities and equity 3,009,527 6,219,657 442,975 6,453,148 16,125,307 

-------------- -------------- -------------- ----··-------- ................................ 
Interest rate sensitivity gap 754,866 (715,802) 3,782,580 (3,821,644) 

====== ======== 
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap: 
As of 31 December 2016 754,866 39,064 3,821,644 

-------------- ------------- -------------
As of 31 December 2015 339,373 74,494 4,082,434 

==== ==--== === 
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d) Market Risk (continued) 

The assets and liabilities re-pricing profile has been determined on the basis of the final maturity period or interest re­
pricing periods at the reporting date, whichever is earlier. The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities 
and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to 
be completely matched, as transacted business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched 
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of losses. The maturities of assets and liabilities 
and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important factors in 
assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates. 

Sensitivity analysis - Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the sensitivity of asset and liability values to changes in the term structure of interest rates or 
interest rate volatility. Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial instruments and reflects the possibility 
that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of the financial instruments and related income. The 
Group manages the risk principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and matching the re-pricing profile of assets 
and liabilities. The Group also assesses the impact of defined movement in interest yield curves on its net interest 
income. The following is the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income and regulatory capital. 

Shift in yield curve 

±200 b.p. 

2016 

AED '000 
7,939 

2015 
AED '000 

4,139 

A substantial portion of the Group's assets and liabilities are re-priced within 1-year. Accordingly, there is limited 
exposure to interest rate risk. The interest rate sensitivities set out above are illustrative only and employ simplified 
scenarios. The sensitivity does not incorporate actions that could be taken by the management to mitigate the effect of 
interest rate movements. 

Equity price risk 

The primary goal of the Group's investment strategy is to maximise investment returns. Most of the Group's equity 
investments are listed either on the Dubai Financial Market or the Abu Dhabi Securities Market. For such 
investments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, a 5% increase in the two markets at the 
reporting date would have increased equity by AED 12.72 million (31December2015: AED 12.48 million) and an 
equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by a similar amount. For investments classified 
as fair value through profit or loss, the impact on the profit would have been an increase or decrease of AED 0.13 
million (31December2015: AED 0.12 million). 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group engages in limited trading in foreign exchange on its own account. Its treasury activities are mainly 
directed to assisting its customers in managing their foreign exchange exposures. A system of exposure limits is in 
place to control price risk on foreign exchange exposures and a system of individual credit limits is in place to 
control counter-party risk. The amount mentioned in the table below reflects the equal but opposite potential effect 
on profit and equity based on a 1 % negative or positive currency fluctuation, with all other variables held constant. 
At the reporting date, the Group has following net open currency exposures in respect of un-pegged currencies to 
USO: 

2016 2015 
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on 

Total profit equity Total profit equity 
AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO AED'OOO 

British Pound 1,907 19 563 6 
Euro (1,782) (18) 185 2 

== == ------ ====== 
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e) Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group's 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity 
risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate 
behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Group's operations and are faced by all business entities. 

The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to 
the Group's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, Group policy requires compliance 
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

The Group has taken measures to put tools in place, to identify all such operational risks. The Group has also taken 
measures to implement processes and policies to mitigate the risk to an acceptable level and to avoid or minimise 
financial losses and damage to Group's reputation. 

Compliance with Group standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. 
The results of Internal Audit reviews are shared with Audit Committee and senior management of the Group. The 
compliance with policies and procedures is strengthened by Internal Audit reviews, while Compliance of regulatory 
requirements is strengthened by Compliance department. 

j) Capital risk management an_d Basel II requirements 

Capital allocation 

The Group's lead regulator, the Central Bank of the UAE, sets and monitors regulatory capital requirements. 

The Group's objective when managing capital are as follows: 

- Safeguarding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and increase return for the shareholders; and 
- Comply with regulatory capital requirement set by Central Bank of the UAE. 

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders' return is also 
recognised and the Group recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be 
possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. 

The Group also assesses its capital requirements internally taking into consideration growth requirements and 
business plans, and quantifies its Regulatory and Risk I Economic Capital requirements within its integrated ICAAP 
Framework. Risks such as interest rate risk in the banking book, concentration risk, strategic risk, legal and 
compliance risk, stress risk, insurance risk and reputational risk are all part of the ICAAP. 

The Group has determined its regulatory capital as recommended by the Basel II Capital Accord, in line with the 
guidelines of CB UAE with effect from 2007. The Group has complied with all externally imposed capital 
requirements throughout the year. There have been no material changes in the Group's management of capital during 
the year. The CB UAE has advised that the minimum capital adequacy ratio should be 12% analysed into two Tiers, 
of which Tier 1 capital adequacy must not be less than 8%. 



Invest bank P.S.C. 
Notes 

27 Financial risk management (continued) 

The Group's regulatory capital position at 31 December was as follows: 

TIER I CAPITAL 

Share capital 
Legal reserves 
Special reserves 
Retained earnings 

Total tier 1 capital 

TIER 2 CAPITAL 
Fair value reserve 
General provisions 

Total tier 2 capital 

Total regulatory capital 

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 
Credit risk 
Market risk 
Operational risk 

Total risk weighted assets (RW A) 

Total regulatory capital expressed as % of RW A 

Total tier 1 capital expressed as % of RW A 

2016 
AED '000 

1,588,125 
450,688 
450,688 
284,773 

-----------
2,774,274 
=== 

(84,470) 
184,493 

-----------
100,023 

------------
2,874,297 
===== 

14,752,977 
56,457 

1,325,894 
------------

16,135,328 
=--== 

17.81% 

17.19% 

2015 
AED '000 

1,588,125 
423,517 

423,517 
207,075 

------------
2,642,234 
======= 

(70,344) 
174,260 

------------
103,916 

------------
2,746,150 
======= 

13,940,838 
51,278 

1,240,560 
------------

15,232,676 
======= 

18.03% 

17.35% 

Total capital requirement for market risk under standardised approach as per BASEL II Pillar 3 is as follows: 

2016 - AED '000 2015 - AED '000 
Risk Risk 

Capital weighted Capital weighted 
required assets required assets 

Interest rate risk 352 1,954 341 2,842 
Equity position risk 319 2,656 298 2,484 
Foreign exchange risk 6,104 50,870 5,514 45,952 
Total capital requirement 6,775 55,480 6,153 51,278 

28 Social contributions 

Social contributions made during the year amount to AED 216,000 (2015: AED 191,500). 

29 Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified where necessary to conform to current year's presentation. 


